
CITY OF WILLIAMS CITY COUNCIL 

ANNOTATED MINUTES PAGE 1      MAY 24, 2012 
AGENDA ITEM  COUNCIL ACTION 

 

I.  PROCEDURES:  

 A. Call to Order Mayor Moore called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 

 B. Pledge and 
Invocation 

Everyone said the pledge of allegiance, and Ruth Sanzari offered the 
invocation. 

 C. Roll Call Mayor John Moore and Vice Mayor Don Dent, Councilmen Bernie 
Hiemenz, Frank McNelly, Lee Payne, and James Wurgler were 
present and constituted a quorum.  Councilman Bill Miller was 
absent. 

Present from City Staff were Brandon Buchanan, City Manager, Joe 
Duffy, Finance Director, Police Chief Herman Nixon and City 
Clerk/HR Director Susan Kerley. 

City Attorney Kellie Peterson was present. 

 D. Approval of Minutes 
May 10, May 15, 
and May 17, 2012 

Councilman Wurgler made a motion to approve the three sets of 
minutes as presented.  Councilman McNelly seconded the motion, 
and it carried 5-0. 

 E. Adoption of Agenda Councilman Hiemenz made a motion to adopt the Agenda as 
presented.  Councilman Dent seconded the motion, and it carried 5-0.

II. PRESENTATIONS - NONE 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

Ruth Sanzari posed several questions: 

 In the past Council approved road repairs on Airport Road and Route 66..  When are they 
scheduled? 

 Brandon Buchanan said that the repairs to Route 66 will be done with NACOG funds so we 
are probably looking at summer after next. 

 What happened to the $350,000 from water sales from the wind farm? 

 Joe Duffy said these funds were spent on wells and the brown water situation last year. 

 There was a purchase order last year for purchase of a pump for a Dogtown well.  Has it 
been purchased? 

 Joe Duffy replied that it was purchased and installed. 

 Has a liquor permit been issued for this week’s concert? 

 Brandon Buchanan said that the promoters hold a county-wide license. 

 Why not use our own vendors rather than those from 35 miles away? 

 Mayor Moore said he was disappointed in the car show vendors last weekend that sneaked 
in under the radar.  They must have proper licenses and tax numbers. 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA  ITEMS Vice Mayor Dent made a motion 
to approve the purchase orders as 
presented.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilman 
Hiemenz, and it carried 5-0. 

 A. Approval of Purchase Orders 



CITY OF WILLIAMS CITY COUNCIL 

ANNOTATED MINUTES PAGE 2      MAY 24, 2012 
AGENDA ITEM  COUNCIL ACTION 

 

       V.  NON-CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 B. Council will hear 
and decide upon a 
request for donation 
to Terri Beeson for 
her Rough Stock 
Rodeo:  B. Buchanan 

Bill Beeson appeared, asking the City to donate use of the Rodeo 
Grounds for the Memorial Weekend Rodeo.  He noted that they are a 
for-profit organization, but it will take all their proceeds to bring the 
Rodeo to town.  They are using the Little League and High School 
organizations as vendors.   

Mayor Moore asked if Council could change the current policy. 

Attorney Peterson recommended not moving from the policy. 

Councilman Dent pointed out that the fee was waived last year to 
help the Beesons get the Rodeo started. 

The issue died for lack of a motion. 

 C. Council may appoint 
members of 
Municipal 
Development 
Authority (MDA):  J. 
Moore 

Councilman Wurgler made a motion to appoint volunteers Michael 
Vasquez and Mike Besler to serve on the Municipal Development 
Authority along with current member, Mike Cowen.  Councilman 
Payne seconded the motion, and it carried 5-0. 

 D. Council may 
approve an 
Agreement with the 
Williams-Grand 
Canyon Chamber of 
Commerce to 
manage the 
Community Stage 
and Events Plaza:  B. 
Buchanan 

Mayor Moore said that, while the Chamber Board of Directors has 
had a chance to review the Agreement, not all Council members have 
done so.  He asked that this item be tabled until June 14, 2012. 

Councilman McNelly made a motion to table this item, and 
Councilman Hiemenz seconded the motion.  It carried 5-0. 

 E. Fiscal Year 
2012/2013 Budget 
Review and Update 
on Sales Tax Item 
from Budget:  J. 
Duffy 

Joe Duffy said that Council and Staff are talking about reducing the 
food tax and BBB by .5% and increasing sales tax by .5%.  He 
explained that HURF revenues have been declining year after year.  
The street overlay program stopped because of the decrease in these 
funds.  He believes there’s been some confusion about the 
recommended tax cuts.  According to City Code, BBB funds are 
earmarked for tourism promotion, recreational facilities, and 
Economic Development.   The City has tried with recreational 
facilities to make capital improvements.   Funds were used as 
matching funds for the aquatic center, to put covers on the bleachers, 
and to purchase materials for the Community Stage.  Recreational 
facilities would take the major hit.  How much it will affect the direct 
payment to the Chamber under the contract for tourism promotion is 
shown on the spreadsheet (distributed to Council and attendees and 
attached). 

The intent of the change in taxes is to generate an extra $540,000 



CITY OF WILLIAMS CITY COUNCIL 

ANNOTATED MINUTES PAGE 3      MAY 24, 2012 
AGENDA ITEM  COUNCIL ACTION 

 

each year directly to put on roads.  Council wants a minimum of 
$400,000 in street work each year.   

Doug Wells, member of the Chamber’s Executive Committee, asked 
what categories a retail tax increase would cover. 

Joe Duffy replied that retail tax covers retail items sold at Family 
Dollar, gift shops, etc. 

Mayor Moore added that, on a $100 bill, the increase in sales tax 
would represent an increase of $.50.   

Councilman Hiemenz asked if the food tax were decreased by .5% 
what effect it would have.  Joe Duffy said it would equal $40,000 to 
the community.   

Doug Wells asked what position that would put us into in the State. 

Joe Duffy replied that this would put us in the top communities in the 
State for sales tax rates. 

Doug Wells said that, most importantly, he doesn’t want to 
jeopardize the relationship between the City and the Chamber.  
Streets are important, and the Chamber wants to be a partner in 
figuring this out.  He thinks transparency in government is important.  
He knew nothing about the tax discussion until last Friday. 

His research on the BBB shows that it is a self-imposed tax designed 
to bring more people to town.  In 2004 it was revised to go to the 
Visitors’ Center and to a Special Events Coordinator.  There was a 
commitment to recreational facilities, staffing the Visitors’ Center, 
and promoting the town.  Despite the partnership, there has been no 
dialogue. 

Mayor Moore pointed out that transparency in government is present.  
This issue has been talked about in three public meetings. 

Doug Wells said he would retract his statement about transparency 
but would like a dialogue.  He believes the Chamber and the City 
have enjoyed a unique partnership since 1989.  He believes these 
entities ought to be looking at what they’re doing and keep doing it. 

He said that the dollars spent are well spent.  Because Flagstaff 
wants to go head-on with Mountain Village Holiday and Tusayan is 
spending lots of money on tourism, now is not the time to cut efforts 
in marketing. 

Councilman Dent said this is not cut-and-dried.  There was enough 
discussion to ask Staff to provide more information and numbers.  
The problem you get into is that the sales tax number will almost 
have to happen because we need $400,000 to $500,000 each year for 
roads.  It will not happen any other way.  We are bonded out.   There 
can be no road projects except for grants without an increase in sales 
tax. 

Doug Wells said the Chamber would like to be part of the dialogue. 



CITY OF WILLIAMS CITY COUNCIL 

ANNOTATED MINUTES PAGE 4      MAY 24, 2012 
AGENDA ITEM  COUNCIL ACTION 

 

Kent Jones said he wanted to reiterate what Doug Wells said.  He 
expressed his gratitude to partner and for the opportunity to promote 
the town.   The Chamber is looking at the situation as advocate to 
business owners.  They do need to look at reductions in direct 
payments to the Chamber because of the budget and would like to 
continue this dialogue in a continued work session on how reducing 
the BBB will impact continued funding.  He recognizes that the 
Chamber is late in coming to the table. 

Mayor Moore said that he and the Council members welcome input.  
He added that streets are part of tourism and related his experiences 
with tourists in neighborhoods in town, walking around taking 
pictures. 

Sean Casey of Bearizona and member of the Chamber’s Executive 
Committee said that no one is benefitting more than Bearizona.  
$26,000 cut out is not a big issue; however, it’s 2014 and further out 
that may shrink the bucket of tourism. 

Mayor Moore asked Joe Duffy for the budget approval schedule. 

Joe Duffy said that approval of the tentative budget is scheduled for 
June 14th.  Then there are 30-60 days to finalize the budget. 

Vice Mayor Dent said that, since the budget meetings, he has sent his 
questions to Staff:  Can funds from BBB be diverted to streets?  Can 
that tax be expanded to include other classifications? 

Mayor Moore asked Doug Wells if the newspaper could publicize 
another public meeting to get all questions answered. 

Doug Wells said yes, they could.   The base of development is 
tourism.  We should keep promoting and have special events. 

Jeff D’Arpa of Grand Canyon Railway and member of the 
Chamber’s Executive Committee said that he appreciates the input.  
Parks and Recreation is taking a big hit.  The Railway and Xanterra 
have committed millions of dollars on promotion over the next few 
years.  Competition will be fighting for dollars.  Xanterra truly 
believes in promoting tourism.  If the tax rate were to be changed in 
the middle of the year, it would wreak havoc on their reservations. 

Brandon Buchanan said that Thursday, June 7th at 7:00 p.m. is 
available for a work session to address the tax issue.  A work 
schedule  will be scheduled for that time. 

VI.  REPORTS AND INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 F Mayor and Council Mayor Moore thanked the Staff for completing the paving of the 
Events Plaza and the hanging of the flowers in the downtown area.  
He also thanked John Peasley for his efforts with the flowers.  He 
asked Kent Jones with APS and Past Chairman of the Chamber of 
Commerce to make an announcement. 

Kent Jones announced that he has accepted a position in Cottonwood 



CITY OF WILLIAMS CITY COUNCIL 

ANNOTATED MINUTES PAGE 5      MAY 24, 2012 
AGENDA ITEM  COUNCIL ACTION 

 

to finish his career with APS.  He said it has been a pleasure to work 
with the Council and the Chamber, and he will be leaving soon. 

Mayor Moore said, “Back at you!” 

 G Staff Reports None  

 H. Purchase Order 
Report 

  

VII.  ADJOURN: Vice Mayor Dent made a motion to adjourn.  It was seconded by 
Councilman Hiemenz and carried 5-0.  The meeting adjourned at 
7:49 p.m. 

 ______________________________________ 
  Mayor John Moore 
 

ATTEST: 

 _______________________________________ 

  City Clerk 


